

BENEFITS GUIDE

A Benefits Guide For Jefferson County Retirees

Effective January 1, 2024

Jefferson County Risk Management Department (This page left intentionally blank)

Table of Contents

Introduction1
Address Corrections1
Medical Coverage1
Dental Coverage1
Prescription Drug Benefit1
Eligibility2
Retiree
Spouse/Dependent Children
Participation Requirements2
Under 65 Retiree and/or Spouse
Over 65 Retiree and/or Spouse
Canceling Your Coverage
Premiums
Medicare Supplement
Important Information Regarding Enrollment in Medicare Part B
Enrolling in Medicare
How to Enroll
Enrolling in Medicare Part B after Your Employer Health Plan Ends4
Life Insurance
Basic Life Insurance Conversion Option5
Supplemental Life Insurance Portability Option
Long-Term Disability
Flexible Spending Program

Attachments	Error! Bookmark not defined.
Jefferson County Retiree Health Benefits P	olicy8
Medical Benefits Summary - Retirees Unde	r Age 65 12
Medicare Supplement Benefits Summary	14
Dental Summary of Benefits	16
Express Scripts0 Prescription Drug Summa 65	•
Humana Prescription Drug Coverage for Re	tirees 65 & Older18
Important Notice from Jefferson County Ab Coverage and Medicare	
Retiree Premiums/Contributions	21
Contact Information	22

The descriptions included in this booklet of plans and benefits are meant to be summaries and are intended to describe generally the plans and coverage available to eligible enrollees. They are not intended to alter, delete or otherwise modify the express written terms of any policy, plan or coverage.

Introduction

Jefferson County is extremely proud of the package of benefits available to retirees. You have several benefit options from which to choose, and we encourage you to study this packet thoroughly and give careful consideration to your personal benefit needs. The benefits package provided for you is an extremely valuable part of the compensation you receive as a County retiree, and thoughtful consideration should be given to your choices in order to achieve the greatest return from this opportunity.

Address Corrections

It is extremely important that you update your address and personal information with the Risk Management Department whenever you have a change. Important information, including notification of annual enrollment, benefit plan changes, and rate changes, may not reach you if our records do not contain accurate addresses.

Medical Coverage

Your retiree medical coverage options and costs are determined by your age and years of service with Jefferson County. You may be eligible to continue on the County's current plan or to participate in a Medicare supplement plan. For cost and eligibility details, please see the Jefferson County Retiree Health Benefits Policy, included with this packet. For benefit details, please refer to the medical plan summary, also included.

Dental Coverage

You are eligible to continue your current dental plan as a



retiree. Your cost is determined by your years of service with Jefferson County at the time of your retirement. For eligibility and cost details, please see the Jefferson County Retiree Health Benefits Policy, included with this packet. For benefit details, please refer to the dental plan summaries, also included.

Prescription Drug Benefit

Retirees and spouses under age 65 will continue to receive the same benefit coverage as active employees. Retirees and spouses over the age of 65 are eligible for the County sponsored Medicare Part D drug plan. Information on both is provided in this guide.

Eligibility

Retiree



Eligible retirees under the age of 65 may continue participation in the same Jefferson County health plan that is offered to active employees. Retirees age 65 and over are offered a Medicare supplement. You must convert your active employee coverage to retiree coverage at the time you terminate employment with the County to continue your eligibility for either medical or dental coverage.

Prior to retirement, you must contact the Risk Management Department to arrange to have your coverage changed to the applicable coverage levels and to arrange for payment of premiums if applicable.

Active employees who leave employment with the County, but who do not begin to receive retirement benefits as County retirees, are not eligible to enroll at a later date. To remain eligible, an employee who terminates employment with the County must retire and enroll in health coverage as a retiree.

Spouse/Dependent Children

Your spouse and dependent children may be eligible for coverage under the retiree health program if covered under the County health plan at the time of your retirement.

Eligible spouses under the age of 65 and dependent children may continue participation in the same Jefferson County health plan that is offered to active employees. Spouses over the age of 65 are offered a Medicare supplement.

Participation Requirements

Under 65 Retiree and/or Spouse/Child(ren)

- Your hire date must be prior to January 1, 2016.
- You must be enrolled in the Jefferson County health plan at the time of retirement.
- You must complete and return a Retiree Enrollment Form not later than the day on which you are retiring from the County.
- You must make premium contributions as applicable.

Over 65 Retiree and/or Spouse

- Your hire date must be prior to January 1, 2016.
- You must be enrolled in Medicare Part A and Part B.
- You cannot be enrolled in a Medicare Advantage Plan. Enrollment in a Medicare Advantage Plan renders you ineligible for the Medicare supplement. You must notify Risk Management if you participate in a Medicare Advantage Plan.
- You must complete and return a Retiree Enrollment Form not later than the day on which you are retiring from the County or turning 65.
- You must furnish a copy of your Medicare card indicating your participation in both Medicare Part A and B prior to completion of the enrollment process.
- You must make premium contributions as applicable.

Canceling Your Coverage

You can cancel your medical or dental coverage at any time during a plan year.

Important note: You should consider the decision to cancel your medical or dental coverage very carefully. Retirees who cancel medical or dental coverage cannot re-enroll.

Premiums

The retiree portion of any medical, dental, prescription drug, and Medicare supplement insurance premiums are established by the Jefferson County Commissioners' Court and may change each plan year.

Applicable premium payments are due on the first of the month. Payments are made via Bank Draft to Retiree First. Failure to make payments within the 30-day grace period will result in termination of benefits and benefits cannot be reinstated.



Medicare Supplement

Important Information Regarding Enrollment in Medicare Part B

Eligibility for the Jefferson County Medicare supplement requires that you be enrolled in both Medicare Part A and Part B. It is extremely important that you enroll in Medicare Part B prior to your 65th birthday. As a retiree, once you turn 65, you are no longer eligible for the under 65 retiree health plan. If you haven't enrolled in Part B by that time, you may have a gap in coverage.

Enrolling in Medicare

How to Enroll

 If you are receiving Social Security income when you turn 65, you will automatically get both Medicare Part A and Part B on the first day of the month in which you turn 65. A card will be mailed to you about three months before your birthday. The Medicare card is red, white and blue. It will come with your name and Medicare number printed on it.



- If you are not receiving Social Security income when you turn 65, you should go to your local Social Security office to enroll in Medicare three months before your 65th birthday. You have seven months to enroll in Medicare without penalties starting three months before the month you turn 65. In some cases, you can avoid the penalty if you or your spouse is still working. Call 1-800-772-1213 for the address of your local Social Security office.
- If you are disabled and have been getting Social Security for more than two years, you should get your Medicare card three months before you become eligible. If you have kidney disease, you should enroll at your local Social Security office. If you have ALS, you become eligible for Medicare as soon as you begin getting Social Security disability benefits.

See Important Notice from Jefferson County About Your Prescription Drug Coverage and Medicare (enclosed with this packet) for more details on your prescription drug coverage.

Enrolling in Medicare Part B after Your Employer Health Plan Ends

Medicare has a "special enrollment period" that allows some people covered by an employer health plan to enroll in Medicare Part B with short notice and without paying a penalty. A couple of months before your active employee health plan ends, call Social Security at 1-800-772-1213 between 7 am and 7 pm weekdays and enroll. Tell them you are enrolling in the "Medicare Part B Special Enrollment Period for people who have been covered by an employer plan" so they know you shouldn't be penalized or wait for enrollment to begin.



The law allows a 7-month time period following the end of employer plan coverage in which to exercise the special enrollment period with Medicare. However, your start date with Medicare must coincide with your County Retiree Over 65 enrollment date.

Members of the Jefferson County Risk Management Department are not Medicare experts or trained to give advice on the subject. You can get more detailed information about what Medicare covers from <u>Medicare & You</u> (Publication No. CMS-10050). To get a copy, call the toll-free number, 1-800-MEDICARE (1-800-633-4227), or go to <u>www.medicare.gov</u>. If you are deaf or hard of hearing, you may call TTY 1-877-486-2048.

Life Insurance

Basic Life Insurance Conversion Option

The basic term life insurance furnished by the County terminates on the date of your retirement. You may be eligible to convert this policy if you complete and submit your application form and payment within 31 days of the date your coverage terminates.

To request a packet with the information and forms to continue your coverage, you may contact:

Securian Life Insurance 1-866-365-2374 Policy #8511200

Supplemental Life Insurance Portability Option



If you participate in the supplemental life insurance at the time of your retirement, you may be eligible to continue the coverage for yourself and your dependents at the group rate. You must complete and submit your application form and payment within 31 days of the date your coverage terminates.

To request a packet with the information and forms to continue your coverage, you may contact:

Securian Life Insurance 1-866-365-2374

Policy #8511200

Long-Term Disability

If you participate in the long-term disability insurance at the time of your retirement, this coverage will terminate on your date of retirement.

Flexible Spending Program

If you participate in the flexible spending program at the time of your retirement, you will be offered the opportunity to continue this benefit for the remainder of the plan year through COBRA.

Jefferson County Retiree Health Benefits Policy

- Medical Plan Benefit Summary
- Medicare Supplement Benefit Summary
- Dental Plan Benefit Summary
- Prescription Drug Plan Benefit Summaries
- Important Notice from Jefferson County About Your Prescription Drug Coverage and Medicare
- Retiree Health Program Premium Rates/Contributions
- Retiree Health Program Enrollment Form

Jefferson County Risk Management Department 215 Franklin St., Ste. 202, Beaumont, TX 77701 409-835-8672

Jefferson County Retiree Health Benefits Policy

Revised November 16, 2015

I. Under 65 Retiree Health Benefits

You are eligible for retiree health benefits if:

As an employee --

- A. You retire under the TCDRS guidelines;
- B. You retire from and have at least 8 years of TCDRS creditable service with Jefferson County; and
- C. You are less than 65 years old at the time of retirement

II. Under 65 Spouse Health Benefits

You may be eligible for retiree health benefits if:

As a spouse of a Jefferson County retiree -

- A. You are less than 65 years old at the time of your spouse's retirement;
- B. You are enrolled in the health plan either as a dependent or an active County employee;

NOTE: Eligibility may be limited by the terms in Section V.

III. 65 & Older Retiree Health Benefits

An employee is eligible for the retiree Medicare supplement and associated health benefits if:

As an employee --

- A. You retire under the TCDRS guidelines;
- B. You retire from and have at least 8 years of TCDRS creditable service with Jefferson County; and
- C. You are 65 years of age or older at the time of retirement and are enrolled in Medicare Part A & B; or
- D. You turn 65 while participating in the under 65 retiree benefit program and are enrolled in Medicare Part A & B.

IV. 65 & Older Spouse Health Benefits

You may be eligible for the retiree Medicare supplement and associated health benefits if:

As a spouse of a Jefferson County retiree --

- A. You are 65 years of age or older, enrolled in Medicare Part A & B, and enrolled as a dependent in the Jefferson County health plan at the time of your spouse's retirement; or
- B. You turn 65 while participating in the under 65 retiree health program and are enrolled in Medicare Part A & B.

V. Eligibility Limitations

Eligibility is subject to the following limitations:

- A. Upon retirement, a retiree's spouse is eligible for the retiree health program for the period of time during which the retiree continues to receive retirement payments and any subsequent period for which the retiree's spouse receives retirement payments based on the election made at the time of the retiree's retirement.
- B. Spouse eligibility is dependent on the employee actually retiring from Jefferson County, not just being eligible to retire.
- C. Dependent children are eligible for County health benefits continuation, if enrolled as a dependent at the time of the employee's retirement.
- D. Dependent children must meet all eligibility requirements of the Health Plan Document.
- E. The spouse and dependent children of an employee who takes a disability retirement are eligible for COBRA continuation.
- F. If a husband and wife are both employed by the County and only one retires, the spouse who remains employed is eligible to participate in the retiree health program at the time his/her employment with Jefferson County ends. The required premium will be what was in effect at the time of retirement.
- G. Retirees and spouses 65 or older are not eligible for the under 65 benefits.
- H. Retirees and spouses 65 or older must remain enrolled in Medicare Part A & B in order to be eligible for benefits.
- I. Spouse participation will end in the event of a divorce, at which time COBRA continuation will be offered.
- J. Dependent children participation will end when they no longer meet eligibility requirements of the Health Plan Document, at which time COBRA continuation will be offered.
- K. Retirees and spouses 65 or older must be enrolled in the County Medicare Supplement in order to participate in the prescription drug program.

- L. If any retiree, spouse, or dependent children benefits are terminated, these benefits will not be reinstated.
- M. Spouse and dependent children participation will end at the time the retiree's health benefits are terminated, except in the case of the retiree's death.
- N. Employees hired on or after January 1, 2016, are not eligible for Retiree Health Benefits.

VI. Premiums

Health premiums include medical, prescription drug, and dental benefits. The following chart indicates the premium required for health plan participation. For retirees 65 or older, the same percentage is applied to the Medicare supplement, dental, and prescription drug premiums.

Retiree	8-11 Years of	12-15 Years of	16-19 Years of	20+ Years of
Premium	Service w/JC	Service w/JC	Service w/JC	Service w/JC
% of Full Health Premium Due	30%	20%	10%	0%

SPOUSE PREMIUM	Less Than Age 65	Age 65 & Over Medicare Supplement
Premium Due	Equal to the active employee contribution made for a spouse for a maximum of ten years - After ten year maximum, full premium	Same Percentage as required for the retiree

Child(ren) Premium	Must Meet Eligibility Requirements
Premium Due	Equal to the active employee contribution made for a child for a maximum of ten years - After ten year maximum, full premium

VII. Disability Retirement Health Benefits

You are eligible for County-paid COBRA benefits for a period up to twenty-nine months if:

As an employee --

- A. You take a disability retirement under the TCDRS guidelines; and
- B. You have at least 8 years of TCDRS creditable service with Jefferson County.

VIII. General Guidelines

- A. You must notify the Risk Management Department not later than the day on which you retire from the County that you elect to continue your health coverage by submitting a Retiree Benefits Enrollment Form.
- B. The term "employee" includes elected officials participating in the Jefferson County retirement plan.
- C. Termination from the program for late or non-payment is administered the same as the COBRA guidelines 30 day grace period and then termination.
- D. Premiums, if applicable, are subject to change each year based on the Jefferson County plan rates.
- E. Jefferson County reserves the right, at its discretion, to amend, change, or terminate any of its benefit plans, programs, practices or policies as it deems necessary.

Medical Benefits Summary - <u>Retirees Under Age 65</u>

Benefit	In-Network Only	
Annual Deductible Individual Family – <i>family deductible is cumulative</i>	\$750 \$2,250	
Annual Out-Of-Pocket Co-Insurance Maximum Individual Family	\$3,000 \$5,500	
Medical Lifetime Maximum	N/A	
Virtual Visits	\$0	
Employee Health Clinic	\$0	
Physician Office Visit Including injections	80% after Deductible	
Diagnostic X-rays & Laboratory	80% after Deductible	
Preferred Laboratory test provided by preferred laboratory	100% Deductible waived	
Preventive Care & Well Child Care includes routine x-ray & labs	Plan pays 100%, Deductible waived	
Inpatient Services at Other Health Care Facilities <i>Includes Skilled Nursing Facility, Rehabilitation Hospital and</i> <i>Sub-Acute Facilities; 180 days combined max per year</i>	80% after Deductible	
Organ Transplant must be pre-certified; includes all medically appropriate, non- experimental transplants	80% at UHC Transplant Designated Facility, otherwise not covered	
Vision Exam – Annual	Plan pays 100%, Deductible waived	
Inpatient Hospital Confinement Must be pre-certified		
Semi-Private Room		
General nursing, operating room, anesthesia, medications	80% after Deductible	
Intensive care or cardiac care unit		
Physician & surgeon fees		

Benefit	In-Network
Emergency Room	\$250 copay for Hospital ER Deductible then 20% (\$2,000 ER copay Maximum)
Urgent Care Center	\$50 copay, then 20%
Physical, Occupational, and Speech Therapy Outpatient - 60 days combined max per calendar year	80% after Deductible
Durable Medical Equipment	80% after Deductible
NCS On-Site Musculoskeletal Treatment	No Charge
Chiropractic Services - 20 visits max per calendar year	80% after Deductible
Prosthetic Appliances and Orthopedic Devices	80% after Deductible
Outpatient Surgery	80% after Deductible
Home Health Care 60 visits max per calendar year	80% after Deductible
Ambulance Services	80% after Deductible
Chemotherapy, Radiation, & Inhalation Therapy	80% after Deductible
All Other Eligible Charges	80% after Deductible
Mental Health and Substance Abuse (Combined)	80% after Deductible
Inpatient — 45 days combined max per calendar year Outpatient — 60 visits combined max per calendar year	

The summary of program benefits herein is for illustrative purposes only. In case of differences or errors, the Group Policy governs.

Medicare Supplement Benefits Summary

Services	Medicare Pays	United American	You Pay
		Plan Pays	
HOSPITAL CONFINEMENT BENEFIT Semi-private room and board, general		eous services and supr	olies:
First 60 days	All but \$1,556	\$1,556	\$0
61⁵ through 90 th day	All but \$389 per day	\$389 per day	\$0
91 st through 150 th day (60 day Lifetime Reserve Period)	All but \$778 per day	\$778 per day	\$0
Once Lifetime Reserve days are used (or would have ended if used) additional 365 days of confinement per person per lifetime	\$0	100%	\$0
SKILLED NURSING FACILITY CARE Semi-private room and board, skilled r You must meet Medicare's requirement a Medicare approved facility within 30	nursing and rehabilitativ hts which include a hos	oital stay of at least 3 d	
First 20 days	All approved amounts	\$0	\$0
21 st through 100 th day	All but \$194.50 per day	Up to \$194.50 per day	\$0
101 st through 365 th day	\$0	\$0	All costs
As long as Physician certifies the need.	All costs, but limited to costs for out- patient drug and in- patient respite care	Co-insurance charges for in- patient respite care, drugs, and biologicals approved by Medicare	All other charges
	BLOOD DEDUCTIBLE – Hospital Confinement and Out-Patient Medical Expenses When furnished by a hospital or skilled nursing facility during a covered stay.		
First 3 pints	\$0	100%	\$0
Additional amounts	100%	\$0	\$0

OUT-PATIENT MEDIAL EXPENSES – Physician's services, In-Patient and Out-Patherapy, diagnostic test, durable medical edited	tient medical and surgica		
Medicare Part B Deductible First \$217 of Medicare-approved amounts	\$0	\$217	\$0
Remainder of Medicare-approved amounts	Generally 80%	20%	0%
Clinical Laboratory services, blood tests, urinalysis and more	100%	\$0	\$0
Part B Excess Charges for Non- participating Medicare providers covers the difference between the 115% Medicare limiting fee and the Medicare approved part B charge.	\$0	100%	\$0
FOREIGN TRAVEL EMERGENCY Medically necessary emergency care service	ces.		
Emergency services needed due to Injury or Sickness of sudden and unexpected onset during the first 60 days while traveling outside the United States.	\$0	80% after \$250 Deductible (to a lifetime maximum of \$50,000)	\$250 Deductible and then 20% of expenses incurred (to a lifetime maximum of \$50,000, 100% thereafter)

1.Coverage amounts valid from January 1, 2023, to December 31, 2023. This chart describes coverage that is only available to persons who are at least 65 and Medicare-eligible.

2. A benefit period begins on the first day you receive service as an inpatient in a hospital and ends after you have been out of the hospital and have not received skilled care in any other facility for 60 days in a row.

The summary of program benefits herein is for illustrative purposes only. In case of differences or errors, the Group Policy governs.

Dental Summary of Benefits

Benefit	Coverage
Annual Deductibles	Individual \$50.00
Annual Maximum	\$1,500 per person (does not include orthodontics)
Type I Expenses (preventive & diagnostic)	100% Deductible waived
Type II Expenses (basic)	80% after a \$50.00 individual Deductible 50% after a \$50.00 individual Deductible
Type III Expenses (major)	50% after a \$50.00 individual Deductible. Limited to employees or dependents who have been covered under the Plan for at least twelve months.
Type IV Expenses (orthodontic)	50% after a \$50.00 individual Deductible Lifetime maximum is \$1,500.00 per covered member. Limited to employees or dependents who have been covered under the Plan for at least twelve months.

Prescription Drug Summary for <u>Retirees Under Age 65</u>

Drug Type	Retail 30 Day Supply	Retail 90 Day Supply	Express Scripts Mail Order
\$0 Copay Generics	\$0 copay for generi	c statins and generic oral	anti-diabetic drugs
Over-the-Counter Drugs**	\$2	\$6	\$6
Generic	The greater of: \$10 or 20%	The greater of: \$30 or 20%	\$20
Preferred Brand	The greater of: \$25 or 30%	The greater of: \$30 or 20%	\$85
Non Preferred Brand	The greater of: \$50 or 40%	The greater of: \$30 or 20%	\$160
Specialty RX- Canadian International	90 days \$0 Copay		
Specialty	\$200 Copay with a 30-day supply \$350 Copay with a 60-day supply \$500 Copay with a 90-day supply		ply
	Must be filled	through Cigna Specialty	Pharmacy

The Plan covers OTC **Nasal Sprays**: Flonase® Allergy OTC, Nasacort® Allergy 24HR, and Rhinocort OTC nasal sprays. **Non-sedating Antihistamines**: Allegra® (fexofenadine), Claritin® (loratadine), Xyzal® Allergy, Zyrtec® (cetirizine) in all forms. **Proton Pump Inhibitors**: Nexium 24HR, Prevacid 24HR, or Prilosec OTC or Zegerid OTC.

Prescription Drug Coverage for Retirees 65 & Older

	Up to a 31 Day Supply
Preferred Generic	\$0
Generic	\$15
Preferred Brand	\$60
Non-Preferred Brand	\$100
Specialty	33%

Retail and Maintenance Drug Pharmacy

Indinana Home Derivery					
	Up to a 90 Day Supply				
Preferred Generic	\$0				
Generic	\$30				
Preferred Brand	\$150				
Non-Preferred Brand	\$250				
Specialty	33%				

Humana Home Delivery

Medicare Part D Notice of Credible Coverage

Important Notice from Southeast Texas Government Employee Benefits Pool About Your Prescription Drug Coverage and Medicare

This notice applies to members who are eligible for Medicare benefits and who are participating in the Southeast Texas Government Employee Benefits Pool (SETGEBP) Health Plan.

Please read this notice carefully and keep it where you can find it. This notice has information about your current prescription drug coverage with SETGEBP and prescription drug coverage available for people who are eligible for Medicare. An individual generally becomes eligible for Medicare at age 65, so if you are covered by a SETGEBP Health Plan for individuals over age 65, this notice applies to you. Individuals also can become eligible for Medicare due to disability or end-stage renal disease. So, if you are covered under a SETGEBP Health Plan for active employees or for retirees under age 65, it is possible that you or a dependent may become eligible for Medicare for one of these reasons, in which case, this notice will also apply to you.

This notice explains the options available to Medicare-eligible individuals under Medicare prescription drug coverage. If you or a dependent is eligible for Medicare, this notice can help you decide whether or not you want to enroll. At the end of this notice is information about where you can get help making decisions about your prescription drug coverage.

Medicare prescription drug coverage became available in 2006 to everyone with Medicare through Medicare prescription drug plans and Medicare Advantage Plans that offer prescription drug coverage. All Medicare prescription drug plans provide at least a standard level of coverage set by Medicare. Some plans may also offer more coverage for a higher monthly premium.

SETGEBP has determined that the prescription drug coverage offered by the SETGEBP Health Plan for all plan participants, on average, is expected to pay out as much as the standard Medicare prescription drug coverage will pay. This means that the coverage is considered "Creditable Coverage".

Individuals can enroll in a Medicare prescription drug plan when they first become eligible for Medicare and each year from October 15th through December 7th. Beneficiaries leaving employer coverage may be eligible for a Special Enrollment Period to sign up for a Medicare prescription drug plan.

If you are currently eligible for Medicare, you should compare your current SETGEBP Health Plan coverage, including which drugs are covered, with the coverage and cost of the plans offering Medicare prescription drug coverage in your area. You should also note what happens to your SETGEBP Health Plan coverage if you choose to enroll in a Medicare prescription drug plan:

- If you are an active employee and you decide to enroll in a Medicare prescription drug plan and drop your SETGEBP Health Plan prescription drug coverage, you and your dependents may not be able to re-enroll in the SETGEBP Health Plan coverage until the next annual enrollment period.
- If you are a retiree and you decide to enroll in a Medicare prescription drug plan and drop your SETGEBP Health Plan prescription drug coverage, you and your dependents will not be able to reenroll I the SETGEBP Health Plan coverage in the future.

Also, note that under the SETGEBP Health Plan you are automatically enrolled for prescription drug coverage if you are enrolled for medical coverage. You cannot drop the prescription drug coverage unless you also drop medical coverage. Please contact SETGEBP for more information about what happens to your coverage if you enroll in a Medicare prescription drug plan.

You should also know that if you drop or lose your coverage with your SETGEBP Health Plan and don't enroll in Medicare prescription drug coverage after your current coverage ends, you may pay more (a penalty) to enroll in Medicare prescription drug coverage later. If you go 63 days or longer without prescription drug coverage that's at least as good as Medicare's prescription drug coverage, your monthly premium will go up at least 1% per month for every month that you did not have that coverage. For example,

if you go 19 months without coverage, your premium will always be at least 19% higher than what many other people pay. You'll have to pay this higher premium as long as you have Medicare prescription drug coverage.

In addition, you may have to wait until the following November to enroll. For more information about this notice or your current prescription drug coverage, call the person listed below.

You will receive this notice annually and at other times in the future, for example, if your SETGEBP Health Plan prescription drug coverage changes. You also may request a copy of the notice. More detailed information about Medicare plans that offer prescription drug coverage is in the *Medicare & You* handbook. Eligible individuals usually receive a copy of the handbook in the mail every year from Medicare. You may also be contacted directly by Medicare prescription drug plans. For more information about Medicare prescription drug plans:

- Visit <u>www.medicare.gov</u>
- Call your State Health Insurance Assistance Program (see your copy of the *Medicare & You* handbook for the telephone number) for personalized help.
- Call 1-800-MEDICARE (1-800-633-4227). TTY users should call 1-877-486-2048.
 For people with limited income and resources, extra help paying for Medicare prescription drug coverage is available. Information about this extra help is available from the Social Security Administration (SSA) at <u>www.socialsecurity.gov</u> or 1-800-772-1213 (TTY 1-800-325-0778).

REMEMBER: Keep this Credible Coverage Notice. If you enroll in a Medicare-approved plan that offers prescription drug coverage, you may be required to provide a copy of his notice when you join to show that you are not required to pay a higher premium amount (penalty).

Date: Name of Entity/Sender: Contact/Office: Address: Phone:

October 3, 2023 Southeast Texas Government Employee Benefits Pool Adan Perez/Jefferson County Risk Management 215 Franklin Street, Suite 202, Beaumont, TX 77701 (409) 835-8672

Retiree Premiums/Contributions

2024 Plan Year Monthly Premiums/Contributions									
UHC Medical Plan (Retirees & Dependents Under Age 65) Retiree Full Premium = \$800.73									
*Years of Service	Retiree Only	Spouse Only**	Retiree & Spouse**	Chilo Only*		Retiree Child**		ouse Child	Full Family
8 – 11	\$240.22	\$380.53	\$620.75	\$300.0		\$540.20		79.07	\$719.29
12 – 15	\$160.15	\$380.53	\$540.68	\$300.0	04	\$460.1	9 \$4	79.07	\$639.22
16 – 19	\$80.07	\$380.53	\$460.60	\$300.0	04	\$380.1	1 \$47	79.07	\$559.14
20+	\$0	\$380.53	\$380.53	\$300.0	04	\$300.04 \$4		79.07	\$479.07
Medicare Supplement Plan Retiree Full Premium = \$355.34									
*Years of	Service			Spouse		Only Ref		tiree & Spouse	
8 –	- 11 \$106		6.60	\$106.		60		\$213.20	
12 –	12 – 15 \$71		.07 \$71.0		71.0	7		\$142.14	
16 –	16 – 19 \$35		.53 \$35.		35.5	53		\$71.07	
20	20+ \$		0 \$ 0				\$ O		
Basic Dental Plan Retiree Full Premium = \$21.86									
*Years of Se	ervice R	etiree Only	Retiree Spou			Retiree and Child(ren)		Full Family	
8 – 11		\$6.56	\$30.	\$30.39		\$30.39		\$55.28	
12 – 1	5	\$4.37	\$28.2			\$28.20		\$53.08	
16 – 19	9	\$2.19	\$26.02		\$26.02		\$50.90		
20+		\$0		3.83		\$23.83		\$48.71	
High Dental Plan Retiree Full Premium = \$32.56									
*Years of Se	ervice R	etiree Only	Retiree and Spouse			Retiree and Child(ren)		Full Family	
8 – 11		\$17.26	\$54.	90		\$54.90		\$104.06	
12 – 1	5	\$15.07	\$52.	71		\$52.71		\$101.87	
16 – 19	Э	\$12.89	\$50.	\$50.53		\$50.53		\$99.69	
20+	20+ \$10.70		\$48.34			\$48.34		\$97.50	

*Years of service with Jefferson County

10 year limit, then full premium of \$1,041.43 per month is due until eligible for Medicare supplement. *10 year limit, then full premium of \$821.17 per month is due if child(ren) meet eligibility requirements.

Contact Information

Coverage	Administrator	Phone/Website						
RETIREES UNDER AGE 65								
Medical	United Healthcare	1-888-567-4659 <u>www.myUHC.com</u>						
Vision	United Healthcare	1-888-567-4659 www.myUHC.com						
Prescription Drug	Express Scripts	1-800-785-4704 www.ExpressScripts.com						
Premium Payments	RetireeFirst	1-855-430-7102						
RETIREES AGE 65 & OVER								
Medicare Supplement	United American Insurance Company Contact Admin- RetireeFirst	1-855-430-7102						
Medicare Prescription Drug Coverage	Humana Contact Admin- RetireeFirst	1-855-430-7102						
Premium Payments	RetireeFirst	1-855-430-7102						

